1986

# Vicki Moon v. Fred C. Schwendiman : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. WAS IT ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS TO RECEIVE INTO EVIDENCE THE INTOXILYZER TEST RESULT WHEN ONLY ONE SECTION 41-6-44.3 AFFIDAVIT WAS INTRODUCED?
2. WAS THE INTOXILYZER AFFIDAVIT IMPROPERLY RECEIVED BECAUSE IT WAS NOT ACCOMPANIED BY A CUSTODIAN'S CERTIFICATE?
3. WAS IT ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS FOR THE HEARING OFFICER TO RECEIVE INTO EVIDENCE THE INTOXILYZER TEST RESULT WHEN HE FAILED TO MAKE FINDINGS IN COMPLIANCE WITH UTAH CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 41-6-44.3(1) AND (2)?
4. WAS APPELLANT'S ARREST UNLAWFUL BECAUSE IT WAS UNSUPPORTED BY REASONABLE GROUNDS?
5. DO UTAH CODE ANNOTATED SECTIONS 41-2-19.6 AND 41-2-20 DENY UTAH DRIVERS PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS BECAUSE THEY FAIL TO PROVIDE MINIMUM SAFEGUARDS AGAINST AN ERRONEOUS DEPRIVATION OF A LICENSE?
6. WAS THE APPELLANT DENIED DUE PROCESS OF LAW BECAUSE THE SAME EMPLOYEE OF RESPONDENT ACTED BOTH AS PROSECUTOR AND JUDGE?
7. DO UTAH CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 41-2-19.6 AND 41-2-20 DENY UTAH DRIVERS WHO SUBMIT TO CHEMICAL TESTS EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAW?

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The appellant contends that the intoxilyzer test result was improperly received into evidence since only one § 41-6-44.3 affidavit was introduced. Appellant submits that logic and § 41-6-44.3 require that two affidavits, one prior to and one after the intoxilyzer test was administered, must be introduced before a test result can be received. Appellant also submits that the affidavit was improperly received because it was not accompanied by a custodian's certificate. In the absence of such a document, the affidavit does not satisfy the requirements set forth by § 41-6-44.3 or Murray City v. Hall, 663 P.2d 1314 (Ut. 1983). Appellant also argues that the test result was improperly received since no findings were made that the challenged affidavit was generated under circumstances indicating trustworthiness. Similarly, no findings were made that the machine complied with standards promulgated by the commissioner of public safety. Appellant also submits that viewing all the evidence, her arrest was not supported by probable cause. Appellant also submits that the hearing she received failed to afford her due process of law. Not enough safeguards against error were incorporated into the hearing. Additionally, the hearing officer was not impartial. Because the hearing officer acted as both prosecutor and judge, no independent judicial determination was made. Finally, appellant submits that she was denied equal protection of the law. Although she agreed to submit to a chemical test, she received far less due process than the uncooperative driver who refuses to submit to such a test.



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

---

VICKI MOON,	:	
Appellant,	:	
-v-	:	BRIEF OF APPELLANT
FRED C. SCHWENDIMAN, in his	:	
official capacity as Director	:	
of the Office of Driver	:	
License Services of the	:	
State of Utah, and the OFFICE	:	
OF DRIVER LICENSE SERVICES	:	
of the State of Utah,	:	Case No. 20323
Respondents.	:	

---

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a judgment suspending appellant's driving privileges for ninety days in the Third District Court in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, the Honorable Dean E. Conder, presiding.

In a review authorized by U.C.A. § 41-2-20, the Honorable Dean E. Conder of the Third Judicial District Court found that the suspension of appellant's driving privileges was not arbitrary or capricious.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On July 29, 1984, Utah Highway Patrol Trooper K. Craig Allred observed the appellant driving westbound on Interstate 80.

Appellant's vehicle was observed making an abrupt lane change as it entered the freeway. The Trooper estimated the appellant accelerated to 80 miles per hour. The Trooper initiated a traffic stop of the appellant (Transcript of Hearing, 4). The Trooper detected an odor of alcohol and requested the appellant to submit to field agility tests (T.5).

The first test was the alphabet test. On her first attempt, appellant became nervous, and asked if she could perform the test a second time (T.21). On her second attempt, the Trooper testified she recited correctly until the letter "U". At that point the Trooper stated the appellant said, "U, N, V, W, X, Y, Z," (T.5). The appellant explained that her use of "N" in between the letters "U" and "V" was a Utah colloquialism for the article of speech, "and" (T.21). Appellant denied that she had confused the letters.

The second test was the finger count. Appellant performed this test correctly two out of three times (T.16). The next test was a balance test where the subject tilts her head back and closes her eyes. The Trooper observed her move a little bit (T.18). The Trooper conceded that everyone who performs that test moves a little (T.18). The next test was the finger to nose test. The appellant touched the tip of her nose with the first digit of her index finger on her first attempt. This deviated from the direction to touch tip to tip (T.18). On her second attempt, appellant touched tip to tip with her thumb.

On the heel-to-toe test, the appellant took the correct number of steps in each direction, turned correctly, but left

several inches between her heel and her toe on a few steps (T.19). The last test was the key drop. The object of this test is for the subject to move her foot after the officer drops the keys, but before the keys hit the subject's foot. One out of three times the appellant moved her foot so the keys did not strike it (T. 6).

Appellant did not slur her speech throughout her contact with Trooper Allred (T.13). She was cooperative, but nervous and over-anxious (T.13). During the performance of the tests, appellant told the Trooper that she had sore feet from hiking all day (T.14).

At the conclusion of the tests, the appellant was arrested for driving under the influence. An intoxilyzer test was administered with a .10 result (T.9).

Appellant received a "per se" hearing before respondent. The hearing was conducted by Dennis Hicks, an employee of respondent (T. 1). One affidavit dated July 25, 1984 was introduced at the hearing to establish the trustworthiness of the machine used to test the appellant's blood alcohol content. (Appendix 1). Appellant's driver's license was suspended for ninety days after the hearing pursuant to U.C.A. §41-2-19.6.

On appeal to the district court, the matter was submitted to the court after legal arguments and memoranda were submitted. No additional evidence was offered by either party to supplement the record. Respondent's suspension of appellant's driver's license was affirmed by the district court. The appellant's request to have her license reinstated pending the outcome of her appeal in this Court was denied.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

IT WAS ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS TO  
RECEIVE INTO EVIDENCE THE INTOXILYZER  
TEST RESULT WHEN ONLY ONE § 41-6-44.3  
AFFIDAVIT WAS INTRODUCED

At the appellant's administrative per se hearing, only one affidavit (Appendix 1) was introduced which purported to attest to the accuracy and trustworthiness of the intoxilyzer test result in the case at bar. That affidavit is dated July 25, 1984. No other affidavit was introduced attesting to the accuracy and proper functioning of the machine at any time after the appellant's arrest date.

It is the appellant's position that in the absence of some evidence of the accuracy and proper functioning of the intoxilyzer machine after appellant's arrest, no proper foundation was laid for the receipt into evidence of the intoxilyzer test result. It is elementary that the proponent of the intoxilyzer must show that the machine was functioning properly before test results can be received. Although an intoxilyzer may be operating properly on a given date, it does not necessarily follow that the machine is still operating accurately four days later. Both the case law and standards promulgated by the Commissioner of Public Safety pursuant to U.C.A. § 41-6-44.3 recognize this logic.

U.C.A. § 41-6-44.3 (Appendix 2) set forth the foundational requirements for affidavits to be introduced in lieu of an officer's testimony regarding the maintenance and proper

functioning of a breath testing instrument. The statute incorporates into its foundational requirements the Commissioner's Breath Testing Regulations (Appendix 3). Regulation III(A), Tests for Checking Calibration, provides: "Breath testing instruments must be certified on a routine basis not to exceed forty (40) days."

The logic behind this requirement must certainly be that if a machine was functioning before and after a particular test was administered, then an inference can be drawn that the machine functioned properly on the date of the subject test if the operator followed the steps properly. In the absence of such testimony which "bookends" the subject test, a finder of fact is left to speculate and conjecture whether the machine functioned properly on the subject date. Regardless of whether the breath test is utilized in a criminal or civil setting, this minimum foundational requirement inheres.

## POINT II

### THE INTOXILYZER AFFIDAVIT WAS IMPROPERLY RECEIVED BECAUSE IT WAS NOT ACCOMPANIED BY A CUSTODIAN'S CERTIFICATE

The challenged July 25th affidavit (Appendix 1) was introduced into evidence at the administrative per se hearing by the Hearing Officer. No explanation is offered on the face of the document which explains where it came from, who maintained it, whether it was maintained in the regular course of anyone's official duties, or even how it appeared in the Hearing Officer's

possession. It was not included in the packet of documents mailed to the Department of Public Safety by the arresting officer. It was not accompanied by a "Custodian's Certificate." Although Troopers Nielsen and Koorring have signed the document underneath the words "Breath Test Technician(s)", there is nothing on the face of the affidavit to attest to the authenticity of any such training or expertise. Furthermore, although the affidavits states that the test of the machine was done according to standards established by the Commissioner of the Department of Public Safety, there is nothing on the face of the document to verify the assertions of Troopers Koorring and Nielsen.

Appellant submits that a Custodian's Certificate (Appendix 4) is a necessary predicate for the admissibility of the July 25th affidavit. Custodian's Certificate could serve to explain the source of the July 25th affidavit. It could also explain where the original document was located. But perhaps most importantly, it could certify the qualifications of the breath test technicians. Nothing on the July 25th affidavit asserts that either Trooper Koorring or Trooper Nielsen have met any of the requirements for breath test technicians as set forth in Regulation V of the Breath Testing Regulations. (Appendix 3). In the absence of such information, the affidavit alone does not establish that a qualified technician, as mandated by U.C.A. § 41-6-44.3(1), has examined the machine.

Because the affidavit simply appeared at the hearing below without an accompanying Custodian Certificate, its genesis is a mystery. Appellant submits that the "indications of trust-

worthiness" requirement of § 41-6-44.3(2)(b) precludes the admission of the July 25th affidavit without some additional foundation. Again, the Custodian's Certificate would appear to remedy the defect since such a document could help to support a finding that the method and circumstances of the affidavit's preparation were such as to indicate its trustworthiness.

§ 41-6-44.3 requires such findings before an affidavit may be received. If there was some basis to conclude that the technician was an expert, as required by statute, then a finding could be made consistent with the mandate of § 41-6-44.3(2)(a) and (b) that the testing procedure was trustworthy. Absent such information, the July 25th affidavit alone does not satisfy the minimum foundational requirements imposed by § 41-6-44.3.

In Murray City v. Hall, 663 P.2d 1314 (Ut. 1983), this court stated that § 41-6-44.3 was a codification of the business records exception. In State v. Bertul, 644 P.2d 1181 (Ut. 1983), the Supreme Court discussed the foundational requirements for the business records exception to the hearsay rule. In Bertful, one of the requirements set forth for a business record to be admitted was that "the evidence must support a conclusion that after recordation the document was kept under circumstances that would preserve its integrity." In the instant matter, only speculation can lead to such a conclusion. For these reasons, appellant submits that the receipt into evidence of the intoxilyzer test result was arbitrary and capricious.

### POINT III

BECAUSE THE HEARING OFFICER FAILED TO  
MAKE FINDINGS IN COMPLIANCE WITH SUB-

SECTIONS (1) AND (2) OF § 41-6-44.3,  
THE RECEIPT OF THE INTOXILYZER TEST  
RESULT WAS ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS

The administrative hearing officer failed to make any findings as mandated by subsections (1) and (2) of § 41-6-44.3. The trial judge also failed to make any such findings. The trial judge did, however, refer to "reliability" in Conclusion of Law #3:

The Court concludes that the intox-  
ilyzer machine was reliable and the  
results admissible before the De-  
partment pursuant to the presumption  
set forth in U.C.A. § 41-6-44.3 and  
44.3, and Murray City v. Hall.

This reference does not satisfy the strict requirement that such findings be made before § 41-6-44.3 affidavits can be received into evidence. In Murray City v. Hall, supra, this court noted that such findings would not be implied. Accordingly, since no such findings were made, the July 25th affidavit was inadmissible, and its receipt into evidence was arbitrary and capricious.

POINT IV

APPELLANT'S ARREST WAS NOT SUP-  
PORTED BY REASONABLE GROUNDS  
AND WAS THEREFORE UNLAWFUL

The appellant's driving pattern consisted of speeding and one abrupt lane change. This driving pattern does not in itself amount to probable cause to arrest the appelalnt for driving under the influence. In addition to the driving pattern,



the arresting officer also testified that he detected the odor of alcohol on appellant's breath. These facts were also insufficient to rise to the level of probable cause.

The only other evidence to support a finding of probable cause was the appellant's performance on the field agility tests. Judging a driver's performance on field agility tests is a subjective task at best. In the case at bar, the appellant submits that her performance on the field tests did not give rise to a finding of probable cause that she was appreciably impaired as a result of the consumption of an alcoholic beverage. Although the appellant made some minor errors on the tests, her over-all performance was satisfactory. Indeed, appellant submits that this was a case where the arresting officer continued to administer tests until the appellant finally failed a test. Viewing all the evidence, appellant submits that her arrest was not supported by reasonable grounds to believe she was under the influence. Because the arrest was unlawful, the suspension of her license was arbitrary and capricious.

#### POINT V

UTAH CODE ANNOTATED SECTIONS 41-2-19.6  
AND 41-2-20 DENY UTAH DRIVERS OF PRO-  
CEDURAL DUE PROCESS

Procedural due process imposes constraints on governmental decisions which deprive citizens of "liberty" or "property" interests within the meaning of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article I,

Section 7 of the Utah Constitution. Board of Regents v. Roth, 408 U.S. 564, 569-571 (1972), Ballard v. State, 595 P.2d 1302 (Utah 1979). In our mobile society, the retention of a driver's license is an important right to every person who has obtained such a license.

Although the United States Supreme Court once recognized a distinction between "rights" and "privileges" in determining whether to afford due process protection to asserted property rights, the Court has now abandoned the artificial distinction between rights and privileges. Instead, the Court has expressed a preference for a flexible definition of property:

"Property" interests subject to procedural due process protection are not limited by a few rigid, technical forms. Rather, "property" denotes a broad range of interests that are secured by "existing rules or understandings."

Perry v. Sindermann, 408 U.S. 593 (1972).

And in Board of Regents v. Roth, supra, 408 U.S. at 577, the Court observed:

It is a purpose of the ancient institution of property to protect those claims upon which people rely in their daily lives, reliance that must not be arbitrarily undermined. It is a purpose of the constitutional right to a hearing to provide an opportunity for a person to vindicate those claims.

The Utah Supreme Court has also adopted this reasoning in Celebrity Club, Inc. v. Utah Liquor Control Commission, 657 P.2d 1293 (1979). In that case, the Liquor Commission argued that a liquor license constituted a privilege revocable at the pleasure or whim of the Liquor Commission rather than a right protected by the full panoply of due process guarantees. The

Utah Supreme Court eschewed this logic.

Thus, appellant's driver's license is indisputably a property interest subject to due process protection:

Suspension of issued licenses. . . involved state action that adjudicates important interests of the licenses. In such cases the licenses are not to be taken away without that procedural due process required by the Fourteenth Amendment. Bell v. Burson, 402 U.S. 535, 539 (1971), and Dixon v. Love, 431 U.S. 105, 112 (1977). Also see Ballard v. State, 595 P.2d 1302 (1979), which cites with approval Bell v. Burson, supra.

Once due process is implicated by a property interest, then the issue becomes what kind of notice and hearing are constitutionally required to permit the deprivation of such an interest. The United States Supreme Court has stated that the quantum and quality of the notice and the hearing vary depending upon the property interest implicated by the deprivation. Thus, the Court noted in Morrissey v. Brewer, 408 U.S. 471, 481 (1972), that it was axiomatic that due process "is flexible and calls for such procedural protections as the particular situation demands."

Because of the severe personal and economic hardships which can and do ensue in our travel-oriented society from suspension of a driver's license, even for a 90 day period, appellant submits that she is constitutionally entitled to a more meaningful hearing than she received pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 41-2-19.6 and a more meaningful review than she received under Utah Code Annotated Section 41-2-20.

#### A. OVERVIEW OF UTAH'S PER SE REVOCATION STATUTES

After a driver has been arrested for driving under the influence by a police officer who has reasonable grounds to

believe a violation has occurred, the officer is authorized by Utah Code Annotated Section 41-2-19.6 to request a chemical test to determine the driver's blood alcohol content. If the driver submits to the test and the results indicate a blood alcohol content of .08% or more, then the arresting officer is authorized to notify the driver of the Driver License Services' intention to suspend the driver's license for 90 days. The driver is issued a temporary license valid for 30 days. The driver is notified of his right to request a hearing regarding the suspension of his license. The request must be made in writing within 10 days of his arrest.

If a hearing is held, it is held before an officer employed by the respondent. The scope of the hearing is limited to 1) whether a peace officer had reasonable grounds to believe the person to have been operating a motor vehicle under the influence, 2) whether the person submitted to a chemical test, and 3) if so, the results of the test.

In addition to this administrative review, Utah Code Annotated Section 41-2-20 authorizes the driver to file a petition for review in the district court in the county in which he resides. The statute specifically circumscribes the scope of the district court's review:

The court's jurisdiction is limited to a review of the record to determine whether or not the department's decision was arbitrary or capricious.

B. WHAT IS THE CHARACTER OF A SECTION  
41-2-19.6 ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING

The resolution of whether the procedures provided under Utah Code Annotated Section 41-2-19.6 and Section 41-2-20 are constitu-

tionally permissible requires close scrutiny of the nature of the administrative hearing. Utah Code Annotated Section 41-2-19.6 provides that the arresting officer must submit a copy of the citation issued regarding the offense, as well as a sworn report indicating the chemical test result, if any, and other bases for officer's belief that the driver was under the influence. The sworn report is also endorsed by the chief of police, or a person authorized by him. The endorsement of the arresting officer's report by the chief of police presumably lends credence or integrity to the accuracy of that report. However, the actual safeguarding benefit of this measure seems highly questionable.

C. MACKEY V. MONTRYM

In Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S. 319, 335 (1976), the Supreme Court enunciated the factors which a court must balance when evaluating what process is constitutionally due to protect against an erroneous deprivation of a protectible property interest:

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