1986

Vicki Moon v. Fred C. Schwendiman, Driver License Services of teh State of Utah : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The arresting officer properly arrested the appellant, Vicki Moon, for driving under the influence of an intoxicating substance. Her driving pattern, the odor of alcohol about her person and her poor performance on the field sobriety tests gave him reasonable grounds, or probable cause, for the arrest.

At the ensuing pre-suspension hearing, the Department of Public Safety properly received and considered the evidence presented, including the intoxilyzer test given by a certified operator. In particular, the department properly considered the intoxilyzer affidavit, showing the machine was functioning properly prior to the subject test. The affidavit was received in the ordinary course of business, regular on its face and showed all indicia of trustworthiness. A second Technician's Affidavit, showing that the machine was functioning properly after the subject test, was unnecessary. The intoxilyzer machine, under regulatory, statutory and case law, is presumed to function

properly for a 40-day period, within which the subject test was administered.

The hearing was also proper, in that there was a constitutional combination of prosecutorial and adjudicatory fact-finding roles in the hearing officer. Likewise, there was no particular or specific bias or benefit evidenced by the hearing officer.

The appellant's due process rights have been protected by Sections 41-2-19.6 and 41-2-20. The pre-suspension process minimizes the chance of erroneous deprivation. Pre- and post-deprivation review sufficiently checks any chance of administrative error.

Likewise, the appellant's right to equal protection has been preserved. She made a choice and was treated the same as all other Utah drivers. She received a hearing similar to those who refuse, rather than submit, to a chemical breath test and suffer a longer consequence (a one-year license revocation compared to a 90-day suspension). The distinctions which exist between suspension cases like this, under Sections 41-2-19.6 and 20, and implied consent cases, under Section 41-6-44.10, are rationally related to the legitimate government purpose of public health, safety and welfare. The greater deprivation involved in refusal cases, as well as the lack of chemical test results, suggest that de novo review, rather than a review of the administrative record, is appropriate in refusal cases. This overall

statutory system protects the due process and balances equal protection rights of both those who submit to a scientific test and the driver who refuses to submit to exculpating chemical breath tests. The statutes rationally provide drivers with impetus to submit to a scientific test. It represents a rational, reasonable means of swiftly and efficiently removing hazardous drivers from Utah's highways.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE INTOXILYZER MACHINE IS PRESUMED TO FUNCTION PROPERLY FOR FORTY DAYS.

A notarized intoxilyzer affidavit was introduced at appellant's pre-suspension hearing (T. at 2, 4). This document shows that, on July 25, 1984, four days prior to the appellant's arrest and test, the intoxilyzer machine was checked and found to be functioning properly. Two "breath test technicians" tested the machine and signed the intoxilyzer affidavit.

Although this document shows that the intoxilyzer machine was working properly a mere four days prior to the appellant's breath test, no such document was presented at the hearing to show that the machine was functioning properly after the appellant's test. This, according to the appellant, is fatal to the suspension decision. Case law, however, clearly indicates otherwise.

In State v. Peterson, 674 P.2d 1251 (Wash. 1984), a criminal case, the Washington Supreme Court addressed this same issue. The defendant had submitted to a test three days after the test machine had been checked and calibrated, but no evidence was introduced to show that the machine was functioning properly after the test. But the Washington Supreme Court ruled that such "bookending" was unnecessary.

Regulations which required breath testing machines to be checked and calibrated at least once every three months were significant to the Peterson court's reasoning. The check and calibration regulations existed prior to the passage of the DUI law under which the defendant had been charged. Thus the Washington legislature was presumed to have knowledge of the regulations. Additionally, the regulations went unchanged after passage of the new DUI law. Id. at 1253. These regulations thus allowed the Peterson court to find, for the purpose of criminal DUI prosecutions, that the legislature had created a presumption that the breath test machines would function properly for three months. Id. at 1254. Because the test machine had been checked within three months prior to the defendant Peterson's test, the court upheld the conviction. Id.

As the appellant knows, Utah has regulations guiding the maintenance and calibration of intoxilyzer machines. See Appellant's Brief at Appendix 3. These regulations require that all intoxilyzer machines be checked at least once every 40 days.

Further, these same regulations and time period were in effect prior to the passage of Section 41-2-19.6. See Respondent's Brief at Appendix 1. It should, therefore, be presumed, as it was in Peterson, id., that the legislature had knowledge of the 40-day calibration and check requirement in enacting Section 41-2-19.6. Accordingly, intoxilyzer machines are presumed to be functioning properly for a 40-day period, or between 40-day checks.

Necessity, as well as logic, dictates these presumptions. A pre-suspension hearing, requested pursuant to Section 41-2-19.6, must be given within 30 days of the arrest. The 30-day requirement facilitates the statutory purpose of quickly removing dangerous drivers from the road. It also may help the driver by disposing of the matter quickly so that he or she may swiftly re-obtain the license rather than continue to use the temporary permit. However, in many hearings such as this one, a second, "bookend" breath test machine affidavit will not be available at the time of the hearing. Thus, logic and necessity also require that a presumption of accuracy be accorded tests from machines checked within a 40-day period.

In this case, the test machine was checked just four days prior to the test at issue. It was checked well within the 40 days allowed by the regulations. Because the machine was checked within this 40-day period, it is presumed to have been functioning properly when the appellant's breath sample was

taken. Since the intoxilyzer machine is presumed to be functioning properly at the time of the appellant's test, the department could rely on the .10% BAC results in suspending the appellant's license.

POINT II

THE INTOXILYZER AFFIDAVIT WAS PROPERLY ADMITTED.

The intoxilyzer affidavit was properly admitted for two reasons. First, the document probably would be admissible in a criminal trial. Second, even if the document would not be admissible in a criminal trial, its inherent trustworthiness permits its consideration in the administrative proceeding.

First, the intoxilyzer affidavit itself evidences trustworthiness. The Department receives such affidavits through the ordinary course of business. The affidavit is regular on its face. It has been signed twice by two trained troopers with a duty to do so. Each trooper signed once under the words "breath test technician(s)", indicating that they have met the requirements of breath test technicians. Each trooper also signed under the statement: "I/we, on oath, state that the foregoing is true." This oath increases the reliability of the affidavit, as does the fact that the signatures were notarized.

All the above indicates that the intoxilyzer affidavit is trustworthy and is a properly admissible business entry or official record, and received by the department as it would be in

a criminal trial. The above reasons are also what apparently led the district court to find that the evidentiary requirements for admissibility imposed by Murray City v. Hall, 663 P.2d 1314 (Utah 1983) and Section 41-6-44.5 and 44.3 been met (R. at 112). It is also a business entry admissible under Rule 803(6) or an official record admissible under Rule 803(8) of the formal Utah Rules of Evidence.

However, even if the intoxilyzer affidavit would not be admissible in a criminal trial, its admission into evidence in the administrative proceeding was still proper. It has long been recognized that the rules of evidence "do not" strictly apply to administrative hearings like the one at issue here. Sandy State Bank v. Brimhall, 636 P.2d 481 (Utah 1981). Because the strict rules of evidence do not apply, the agency need not meet the formal foundational requirements of evidence presented in a criminal case such as Murray City v. Hall, 663 P.2d 1314 (Utah 1983), but may use common sense and reasonableness.

Murray City v. Hall, *id.*, and corresponding Section 41-6-44.3, as cited by the appellant, relate only to criminal trials. That is, Murray City v. Hall, *id.*, is a criminal DUI case. In that case, this Court discusses the requirements of Section 41-6-44.3. This statute uses, exclusively, the term "judge" rather than, for instance, "agency" or "hearing officer", thus making it, likewise, inapplicable to administrative proceedings. Because Murray City v. Hall and Section 41-6-44.3 relate only to

criminal proceedings, they serve mainly as "guideline precedent" for the requirements of this civil, administrative pre-suspension hearing.

As discussed above, the intoxilyzer affidavit had every reasonable indication of trustworthiness, and no contrary indications. It is regular on its face. It has been signed twice by two troopers--once as "breath test technicians" and once under an oath. The document is also notarized. Because the strict rules of evidence do not apply to administrative proceedings, such as the one at issue here, and because the intoxilyzer affidavit evidences trustworthiness, it was properly considered by the department. This court, as did the court below, should affirm the affidavit's admission.

POINT III

THE ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS ARE PROPER.

The statute under which the appellant's license was suspended, Section 41-2-19.6, requires the Department to make only two findings in support of any suspension decision. It requires that the Department find, first, that the arresting officer had reason to believe that the driver was operating a vehicle while under the influence and, second, that the chemical test results indicated a BAC of .08% or greater. Section 41-2-19.6 does not require the department to make the same strict foundational findings dictated by a criminal DUI penalty or Section 41-6-44.3, which by definition does not apply to civil administrative hearings guided by a distinct civil statute.

Because the department made its findings in accordance with the narrow and civil scope of Section 41-2-19.6, based on substantial and competent sworn testimony, the civil suspension of the appellant's license should be upheld.

POINT IV

THE ARRESTING OFFICER HAD REASONABLE GROUNDS
TO BELIEVE THAT THE APPELLANT WAS
DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE.

The appellant's driving pattern, her abrupt lane change and speeding in excess of 80 miles per hour (T. at 4) gave Trooper Allred grounds to stop the appellant. After the trooper stopped the appellant, the odor of alcohol he detected about her person certainly justified his request that she volunteer some field sobriety tests (T. at 5). Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1 (1968).

The trooper requested that the appellant perform five different field sobriety tests, aside from the nystagmus test (T. at 6, 15). Although each test was first demonstrated for her, the appellant had problems with each of these tests. The first time she misrecited the alphabet, saying, "P, Q, W, S, T, U, M, V" (T. at 5). On the second finger count test, she mixed up her fingers (T at 5-6). She swayed during the balance and heel-to-toe tests, and had trouble touching her nose while performing the finger-to-nose test. She performed the key-drop test incorrectly two out of three times (T. at 6).

Although Ms. Moon's performance of the field sobriety tests was not terrible, it was certainly not satisfactory. Her driving pattern, the smell of alcohol about her person, and the numerous problems she had in performing the field sobriety tests gave Trooper Allred, as both the department and the trial court found, "grounds to believe" that the appellant was under the influence.

POINT V

UTAH'S DUI LAWS SATISFY DUE PROCESS GUARANTEES.

The United States Supreme Court has sanctioned DUI/IMPLIED consent laws. In Mackey v. Montrym, 443 U.S. 1 (1979), the Court upheld Massachusetts' implied consent system under which the petitioner's driver license was revoked for refusing to take a breath test.

Under the Massachusetts system, the "registrar" summarily revokes the driver's license on receipt of a police officer's report of that driver's refusal to submit to a chemical test. Only after revocation has occurred is the Massachusetts driver entitled to an administrative hearing. Id. at 2615. This post-suspension hearing is similar to Utah's pre-suspension hearing in that it covers a few narrow issues, namely: (1) whether or not the officer had reason to believe the driver was operating a vehicle while under the influence; (2) whether or not the driver was arrested; and (3) whether or not the driver re-

fused to submit to a test. Id. at F.N.5. After this initial hearing, which is the post-deprivation hearing, the Massachusetts driver may seek additional administrative and judicial review. Id. at 6-8.

In analyzing the constitutional sufficiency of the Massachusetts' system, the Montrym Court, following the Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S. 319 (1976), balancing test, considered three factors. It considered: (1) the private interest at stake--the driver's license; (2) the risk of erroneous deprivation, and value of alternative procedural safeguards; and (3) the governmental interest at stake.

In considering the first of these three factors, the Court recognized that drivers do have an interest in their licenses. More specifically, the Court found "the driver's interest is in continued possession and use of his license pending the outcome of the hearing due him." Id. at 11. The "hearing due him" in Montrym is the administrative post-deprivation hearing, the first hearing available to the Massachusetts driver after the summary revocation of his license. Because Utah drivers, like the appellant, are initially afforded a pre-suspension hearing, the individual interest is, accordingly, decreased. That is, because under Section 41-2-19.6 the appellant had continued possession of her (temporary) license until the "hearing due [her]", her interest is less than that of the Massachusetts driver.

The Montrym court also unqualifiedly recognized the substantial governmental interest, the third factor, in promptly removing impaired and dangerous drivers from the road, and keeping them off through an efficient administrative process. Id. at 17-19. Indeed, the state's interest is so strong that it led the Montrym court to find a pre-suspension hearing unnecessary.

In discussion of the second leg of the Eldridge balancing test, the risk of erroneous deprivation, the Montrym court found that the flexible due process clause does not require a risk-free system. The Court stated:

The Due Process Clause simply does not mandate that all governmental decision making comply with standards that assure perfect, error-free determinations. Greenholtz v. Nebraska Penal Inmates, supra at 7. Thus, even though our legal tradition regards the adversary process as the best means of ascertaining truth and minimizing the risk of error, the "ordinary principle" established by our prior decisions is that "something less than an evidentiary hearing is sufficient prior to adverse administrative action." Dixon v. Love, supra at 113. And, when prompt post-deprivation review is available for correction of administrative error, we have generally required no more than that the pre-deprivation procedures used be designed to provide a reasonable reliable basis for concluding that the facts justifying the official action are as a responsible governmental official warrants them to be. See, e.g. Barry v. Barchi, post, at 65-66; Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S. at 334. [Id. at 13.]

Thus, in considering the second prong of the Eldridge test, the nature of the administrative suspension system should be examined, as should the nature of relief from or judicial review of an adverse agency decision.

A. The Utah System Minimizes the
Chance of Erroneous Deprivation.

As the Montrym court stated, the Due Process Clause does not require an "error-free" system. And, so long as prompt judicial review of the suspension decision is available, it does not require an evidentiary hearing prior to the suspension of an individual's driver license.

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